



Literature Cited

American Forest and Paper Association. 2009. Our industry-paper. Washington, DC: American Forest and Paper Association. <http://www.afandpa.org/PaperRecycling.aspx>. (20 September 2011).

Alexander, S.J.; Oswalt, S.N.; Emery, M.R. 2011. Nontimber forest products in the United States: Montreal process indicators as measures of current conditions and sustainability. Gen. Tech. Rep. PNW-851. Portland, OR: U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service, Pacific Northwest Research Experiment Station. 37 p.

Askins, R.A. 2001. Sustaining biological diversity in early successional communities: the challenge of managing unpopular habitats. *Wildlife Society Bulletin*. 29(2): 407-412.

Association of Fish and Wildlife Agencies. 2011. State wildlife action plans. Washington, DC: Association of Fish and Wildlife Agencies. http://www.stateforesters.org/issues_and_policy/forests_in_the_farm_bill. (24 January 2011).

Bailey, R.G. 1977. Ecoregions of North America. [1:15,000,000] scale map. Rev. Washington, DC: U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service.

Baltimore County Maryland Department of Environmental Protection and Resource Management. 2007. The state of our forests – 2007. Baltimore, MD: Baltimore County Department of Environmental Protection and Resource Management. 70 p.

Bancroft, J.S.; Smith, M.T. 2001. Modeling dispersal of the Asian longhorn beetle. In: Fosbroke, S.L.C.; Gottschalk, K.W., eds. Proceedings, U.S. Department of Agriculture interagency research forum on gypsy moth and other invasive species. Gen. Tech. Rep. NE-285. Newtown Square, PA: U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service, Northeastern Research Station: 15-20.

- Barnes, M.C.; Todd, A.H.; Lilja, R.W.; Barten, P.K. 2009.** Forests, water and people: drinking water supply and forest lands in the Northeast and Midwest United States. NA-FR-01-08. Newtown Square, PA: U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service, Northeastern Area State and Private Forestry. 71 p.
- Birch, T.W. 1996.** Private forest-land owners of the Northern United States, 1994. Resour. Bull. NE-136. Radnor, PA: U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service, Northeastern Forest Experiment Station. 293 p.
- Birdsey, R.A. 1996.** Regional estimates of timber volume and forest carbon for fully stocked timberland, average management after final clearcut harvest. In: Sampson, R.N.; Hair, D., eds. Forests and global change. Vol. 2. Forest management opportunities for mitigating carbon emissions. Washington, DC: American Forests: 309-334.
- Blackard, J.A.; Finco, M.V.; Helmer, E.H. [et al.]. 2008.** Mapping U.S. forest biomass using nationwide forest inventory data and moderate resolution information. *Remote Sensing of Environment*. 112(4): 1658-1677.
- Brown, T.C.; Binkley, D. 1994.** Effect of management on water quality in North American forests. Gen. Tech. Rep. RM-248. Fort Collins, CO: U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service, Rocky Mountain Forest and Range Experiment Station. 27 p.
- Brown, T.C.; Hobbins, M.T.; Ramirez, J.A. 2008.** Spatial distribution of water supply in the coterminous United States. *Journal of the American Water Resources Association*. 44(6): 1474-1487.
- Burger, J.A.; Kelting, D.L. 1999.** Using soil quality indicators to assess forest stand management. *Forest Ecology and Management*. 122: 155-166.
- Bush, R.J.; Araman, P.A.; Hager, E.B. 2007.** Recovery, reuse and recycling by the United States wood packaging industry: 1993 to 2006. Blacksburg, VA: Virginia Polytechnic Institute and State University. [Poster presentation, Dean's Forum on the Environment.] <http://www.srs4702.forprod.vt.edu/pubsubj/pdf/07t5.pdf>. (26 October 2009).
- Butler, B.J.; Miles, P.D.; Hansen, M.H. 2010.** National Woodland Owner Survey table maker [Web application]. Version 1.0. Newtown Square, PA: U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service, Northern Research Station. <http://fiatools.fs.fed.us/NWOS/tablemaker.jsp>. (27 July 2011).

- Butler, B.J. 2008.** Family forest owners of the United States, 2006. Gen. Tech. Rep. NRS-27. Newtown Square, PA: U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service, Northern Research Station. 72 p.
- Carpenter, C.A. 2007.** Forest sustainability assessment for the Northern United States. NA-TP-01-07. Newtown Square, PA: U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service, Northeastern Area State and Private Forestry. 336 p.
- Chicago Climate Exchange. 2009.** Chicago Climate Exchange®. Forestry carbon sequestration project protocol. http://www.chicagoclimatex.com/docs/offsets/CCX_Forestry_Sequestration_Protocol_Final.pdf. (10 February 2011).
- Conservation Biology Institute. 2010.** Protected areas database PAD-US 1.1 CBI edition. <http://consbio.org/what-we-do/protected-areas-database-pad-version-4>. Corvallis, OR: Conservation Biology Institute. (14 November 2010).
- Convention on Biological Diversity. 2010.** What is forest biological diversity? Montreal, QC: Secretariat of the Convention of Biological Diversity. <http://www.cbd.int/forest/what.shtml>. (15 November 2011).
- Cordell, H.K. 2004.** Outdoor recreation for 21st century America. State College, PA: Venture Publishing, Inc. 293 p.
- Cordell, H.K.; Betz, C.J.; Mou, S.H.; Gormanson, D.** In press. Outdoor recreation in a shifting northern societal landscape. General Technical Report. Newtown Square, PA: U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service, Northern Research Station.
- Cronan, C.S.; Grigal, D.F. 1995.** Use of calcium/aluminum ratios as indicators of stress in forest ecosystems. *Journal of Environmental Quality*. 24: 209-226.
- Cumming, A.B.; Nowak, D.J.; Twardus, D.B. [et al.]. 2007.** Urban forests of Wisconsin 2002: pilot monitoring project 2002. NA-FR-05-07. Newtown Square, PA: U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service, Northeastern Area State and Private Forestry. 33 p.
- Cumming, A.B.; Twardus, D.B.; Nowak, D.J. 2008.** Urban forest health monitoring: large scale assessments in the United States. *Arboriculture and Urban Forestry*. 34(6): 341-346.
- DellaSalla, D.A.; Staus, N.L.; Strittholt, J.R.; Hackman, A.; Iacobelli, A. 2001.** An updated protected areas database for the United States and Canada. *Natural Areas Journal*. 21: 124-135.

- Dietzman, D.; LaJeunesse, K.; Wormstead, S. 2011.** Northern forest futures project: Scoping of issues in the forests of the Northeast and Midwest of the United States. Version 3.0. Newtown Square, PA: U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service, Northern Research Station. 42 p.
- Doran, J.W.; Parkin, T.B. 1994.** Defining and assessing soil quality. In: Doran, J.W.; Coleman, D.C.; Bezdicek, D.F.; Stewart, B.A., eds. Defining soil quality for a sustainable environment. Soil Science Society of America Spec. Publ. 35. Madison, WI: Soil Science Society of America: 3-21.
- Drummond, M.A.; Loveland, T.R. 2010.** Land-use pressure and a transition to forest-cover loss in the Eastern United States. *BioScience*. 60(4): 286-298.
- Dudley, N., ed. 2008.** Guidelines for applying protected area management categories. Gland, Switzerland: International Union for Conservation of Nature. 86 p. <http://data.iucn.org/dbtw-wpd/edocs/PAPS-016.pdf> (20 September 2010).
- European Commission Joint Research Centre Institute for Environment and Sustainability. 2011.** Graphical user interface for the description of image objects and their shapes (GUIDOS). <http://forest.jrc.ec.europa.eu/download/software/guidos>. (28 January 2011).
- Eyre, F.H., ed. 1980.** Forest cover types of the United States and Canada. Bethesda, MD: Society of American Foresters. 148 p.
- Federal Register. 2009.** Executive Order 13514—Federal Leadership in Environmental, Energy, and Economic Performance. *Federal Register*. 74(194): 52117-52127. <http://edocket.access.gpo.gov/2009/pdf/E9-24518.pdf>. (26 January 2011). http://www.whitehouse.gov/assets/documents/2009fedleader_eo_rel.pdf.
- Floyd, D.W.; Vonhof, S.L.; Seyfang, H. 2001.** Forest sustainability: a discussion guide for professional resource managers. *Journal of Forestry*. 99(2): 8-28.
- Follett, R.F.; Kimble, J.M.; Lal, R., eds. 2001.** The potential of U.S. grazing lands to sequester carbon and mitigate the greenhouse effect. Boca Raton, FL: Lewis Publishers. 472 p.
- Food and Agriculture Organization of the United Nations. 2010.** Global forest resources assessment 2010. FAO For. Pap. 163. Rome, Italy: Food and Agriculture Organization of the United Nations. 342 p.

- Fry, J.A.; Coan, M.J.; Homer, C.G.; Meyer, D.K.; Wickham, J.D. 2009.** Completion of the national land cover database (NLCD) 1992–2001 land cover change retrofit product. U.S. Geological Survey Open-File Rep. 2008–1379. Reston, VA: U.S. Department of Interior, Geological Survey. 18 p. <http://pubs.usgs.gov/of/2008/1379/>. (9 January 2011).
- Gobster, P.H.; Rickenbach, M.G. 2004.** Private forestland parcelization and development in Wisconsin's Northwoods: perceptions of resource-oriented stakeholders. *Landscape and Urban Planning*. 69: 165-182.
- Godman, R.M.; Lancaster, K. 1990.** Eastern hemlock (*Tsuga canadensis* (L.) Carr. In: Burns, R.M.; Honkala, B.H., tech. coords. *Silvics of North America*. 1: Conifers. Agric. Handb. 654. Washington, DC: U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service: 604-612.
- Gorte, R.S. 2009.** U.S. tree planting for carbon sequestration. R40562. Washington, DC: Congressional Research Service. <http://www.fas.org/sgp/crs/misc/R40562.pdf>. (11 February 2011).
- Greenfield, E.J.; Nowak, D.J.; Walton, J.T. 2009.** Assessment of NLCD tree and impervious surface cover estimates. *Photogrammetric Engineering and Remote Sensing*. 75(11): 1279-1286.
- Gronewold, N. 2011.** Chicago Climate Exchange closes Nation's first cap-and-trade system but keeps eye to the future. *New York Times*. January 3. <http://www.nytimes.com/cwire/2011/01/03/03/climatewire-chicago-climate-exchange-closes-but-keeps-ey-78598.html>. (11 March 2011).
- Haack, R.A. 2001.** Intercepted *Scolytidae* at U.S. ports of entry: 1985-2000. *Integrated Pest Management Reviews*. 6(3): 253-282.
- Haugen, D.A.; Hoebeke, E.R. 2005.** Pest alert: sirex woodwasp—*Sirex noctilio* F. (Hymenoptera: Siricidae). NA-PR-07-05. Newtown Square, PA: U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service, Northeastern Area State and Private Forestry. 2 p.
- Helms, J.A. 1998.** *The dictionary of forestry*. Bethesda, MD: Society of American Foresters. 210 p.
- Homer, C.; Huang, C.; Yang, L.; Wylie, B.; Coan, M. 2004.** Development of a 2001 national land-cover database for the United States. *Photogrammetric Engineering and Remote Sensing*. 70(7): 829-840. Data from Multi-resolution Land Characteristics Consortium. www.mrlc.gov. (14 August 2008).

- Howard, J.L. 2007.** U.S. timber production, trade, consumption, and price statistics 1965 to 2005. Res. Pap. FPL-RP-637. Madison, WI: U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service, Forest Products Laboratory. 91 p.
- Ince, P. 1996.** Recycling of wood and paper products in the United States. Gen. Tech. Rep. FPL-GTR-89. Madison, WI: U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service, Forest Products Laboratory. 10 p.
- International Union for Conservation of Nature. 1994.** Guidelines for protected areas management categories. Gland, Switzerland and Cambridge, UK: International Union for Conservation of Nature: 15-23. <http://app.iucn.org/dbtw-wpd/edocs/1994-007-En.pdf>. (16 November 2011).
- International Union for Conservation of Nature. 2010.** The International Union for Conservation of Nature. <http://www.iucn.org/>. (8 July).
- Iverson, L.R.; Prasad, A.M.; Matthews, S.N.; Peters, M. 2008.** Estimating potential habitat for 134 Eastern U.S. tree species under six climate scenarios. *Forest Ecology and Management*. 254: 390-406.
- Kennedy, A.C.; Papendick, R.I. 1995.** Microbial characteristics of soil quality. *Journal of Soil and Water Conservation*. 50(3): 243-248.
- Kurtz, J.C.; Jackson, L.E.; Fisher, W.S. 2001.** Strategies for evaluating indicators based on guidelines from the Environmental Protection Agency's Office of Research and Development. *Ecological Indicators*. 1: 49-60.
- Kuykendall, H. 2008.** Soil quality physical indicators: selecting dynamic soil properties to assess soil function. Soil Quality Tech. Note 10. Washington, DC: U.S. Department of Agriculture, Natural Resources Conservation Service, Soil Quality National Technology Development Team. 5 p.
- Lal, R.; Kimble, J.M.; Follett, R.F.; Cole, C.V. 1998.** The potential of U.S. cropland to sequester carbon and mitigate the greenhouse effect. Boca Raton, FL: Lewis Publishers. 144 p.
- Luppold, W.; Bumgardner, M. 2008.** Regional analysis of hardwood lumber production: 1963–2005. *Northern Journal of Applied Forestry*. 25(3): 146-150.
- Malsheimer, R.W.; Heffernan, P.; Brink, S. [et al.]. 2008.** Forest management solutions for mitigating climate change in the United States. *Journal of Forestry*. 106(3):119-171.

- Matthews, S.N.; Iverson, L.R.; Prasad, A.M.; Peters, M.P. 2007.** A climate change atlas for 147 bird species of the Eastern United States [Database]. Newtown Square, PA: U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service, Northern Research Station. <http://www.nrs.fs.fed.us/atlas/bird>. (24 January 2011).
- McClure, M.S. 1990.** Role of wind, birds, deer, and humans in the dispersal of hemlock woolly adelgid (Homoptera: Adelgidae). *Environmental Entomology*. 19(1): 36-43.
- McLain, R.J.; Jones, E.T. 2005.** Nontimber forest products management on national forests in the United States. Gen. Tech. Rep. PNW-GTR-655. Portland, OR: U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service, Pacific Northwest Research Station. 85 p.
- McManus, M.; Schneeberger, N.; Reardon, R.; Mason, G. 1989.** Gypsy moth. For. Insect and Dis. Leaflet. 162. Washington, DC: U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service. 14 p.
- McNab, W.H.; Avers, P.E. 1994.** Ecological subregions of the United States: section descriptions. Admin. Publ. WO-WSA-5. Washington, DC: U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service. 284 p.
- Miles, P.D. 2010.** Forest inventory EVALIDator [Web application]. Version 4.01 beta. Newtown Square, PA: U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service, Northern Research Station. <http://fiatools.fs.fed.us/Evalidator401/tmattribute.jsp>. (14 November 2010).
- Montréal Process Working Group. 2010.** The Montréal Process. http://www.rinya.maff.go.jp/mpci/criteria_e.html. (5 July 2011).
- Morin, R.S.; Liebhold, A.M.; Luzader, E.R. [et al.]. 2005.** Mapping host-species abundance of three major exotic forest pests. Res. Pap. NE-726. Newtown Square, PA: U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service, Northeastern Research Station. 11 p.
- Multi-Resolution Land Characteristics Consortium (MRLC). 2011.** National land cover database. Sioux Falls, SD: U.S. Department of Interior, Geologic Survey, Earth Resources Observation and Science Center. www.mrlc.gov. (14 August 2008).
- National Association of State Foresters. 2011.** State forestry statistics. Washington, DC: National Association of State Foresters. <http://www.stateforesters.org/publication-type/stats>. (30 July 2011).
- National Association of State Foresters. 2010.** State forest action plans. Washington, DC: National Association of State Foresters. <http://www.forestactionplans.org/>. (11 June 2011).

- NatureServe. 2010.** NatureServe explorer. Arlington, VA: NatureServe. <http://www.natureserve.org/explorer/>. (28 March 2011).
- North Maine Woods. 2010.** North Maine Woods, Inc. Ashland, ME: North Maine Woods. <http://www.northmainewoods.org/>. (8 July 2011).
- Nowak, D.J.; Greenfield, E. 2010.** Evaluating the National Land Cover Database tree canopy and impervious cover estimates across the conterminous United States: a comparison with photo-interpreted estimates. *Environmental Management*. 46: 378-390.
- Nowak, D.J.; Hoehn, R.; Crane, D.E.; Stevens, J.C.; Walton, J.T. 2006a.** Assessing urban forest effects and values: Minneapolis' urban forest. *Resour. Bull. NE-166*. Newtown Square, PA: U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service, Northeastern Research Station. 20 p.
- Nowak, D.J.; Hoehn, R.; Crane, D.E.; Stevens, J.C.; Walton, J.T. 2006b.** Assessing urban forest effects and values: Washington D.C.'s urban forest. *Resour. Bull. NRS-1*. Newtown Square, PA: U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service, Northern Research Station. 24 p.
- Nowak, D.J.; Hoehn, R.; Crane, D.E.; Stevens, J.C.; Walton, J.T. 2007a.** Assessing urban forest effects and values: New York's urban forest. *Resour. Bull. NRS-9*. Newtown Square, PA: U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service, Northern Research Station. 22 p.
- Nowak, D.J.; Hoehn, R.; Crane, D.E.; Stevens, J.C.; Walton, J.T. 2007b.** Assessing urban forest effects and values: Philadelphia's urban forest. *Resour. Bull. NRS-7*. Newtown Square, PA: U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service, Northern Research Station. 22 p.
- Nowak, D.J.; Rowntree, R.A.; McPherson, E.G. [et al.]. 1996.** Measuring and analyzing urban tree cover. *Landscape and Urban Planning*. 36: 49-57.
- Nowak, D.J.; Twardus, D.; Hoehn, R. [et al.]. 2007c.** National Forest Health Monitoring program, monitoring urban forests in Indiana: pilot study 2002. Part 2: Statewide estimates using the UFORE model. *NA-FR-01-07*. Newtown Square, PA: U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service, Northeastern Area State and Private Forestry. 13 p.
- Nowak, D.J.; Walton, J.T. 2005.** Projected urban growth (2000-2050) and its estimated impact on the U.S. forest resource. *Journal of Forestry*. 103(08): 383-389.
- Nowak, D.J.; Walton, J.T.; Dwyer, J.F.; Kaya, L.G.; Myeong, S. 2005.** The increasing influence of urban environments on U.S. forest management. *Journal of Forestry*. 103(8): 377-382.

- O'Neill, K.P.; Amacher, M.C.; Perry, C.H. 2005.** Soils as an indicator of forest health: a guide to the collection, analysis, and interpretation of soil indicator data in the Forest Inventory and Analysis program. Gen. Tech. Rep. NC-258. St. Paul, MN: U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service, North Central Research Station. 53 p.
- Ottinger, R.L.; Wooley, D.R.; Robinson, N.A. [et al.]. 1990.** Environmental costs of electricity. White Plains, NY: Oceana Publications. 769 p.
- Paper Industry Association Council. 2009.** National paper recycling access/paper/paperboard collection by state. Washington, DC: American Forest and Paper Association.
http://www.paperrecycles.org/community_recycling/index.html. (20 November 2010).
- Pearce, D.W. 2001.** The economic value of forest ecosystems. *Ecosystem Health*. 7(4): 285-296.
- Pearce, D.W.; Atkinson, G.D.; Dubourg, W.R. 1994.** The economics of sustainable development. *Annual Review Energy and the Environment*. 19: 457-474.
- Pinchot, G. 1947.** Breaking new ground. Washington, DC: Island Press. 522 p.
- Prasad, A.M.; Iverson, L.R.; Matthews, S.; Peters, M. 2007.** A climate change atlas for 134 forest tree species of the Eastern United States [Database]. Newtown Square, PA: U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service, Northern Research Station.
<http://www.nrs.fs.fed.us/atlas/tree>. (24 January 2011).
- Protected Areas Center. 2010.** Data basin: PAD-US 1.1 (CBI edition). <http://www.databasin.org/protected-center/features/PAD-US-CBI>. Corvallis, OR: Conservation Biology Institute. (12 November 2010).
- Radeloff, V.C.; Hammer, R.B.; Stewart, S.I. [et al.]. 2005.** The Wildland urban interface in the United States. *Ecological Applications*. 15: 799-805.
- Radeloff, V.C.; Stewart, S.I.; Hawbaker, T.J. [et al.]. 2010.** Housing growth in and near United States protected areas limits their conservation value. *Proceedings of the National Academy of Sciences*. 107(2): 940-945.
- Recycler's World. 2009.** Wooden pallet recycling category. Salt Lake City, UT: RecyclersNet Corp.
<http://www.recycle.net/Wood/pallet/index.html>. (9 November 2010).
- Riitters, K.H.; Wickham, J.D.; Wade, T.G. 2008.** An indicator of forest dynamics using a shifting landscape mosaic. *Ecological Indicators*. 9(1): 107-117.

- Rodenhouse, N.L.; Matthews, S.N.; McFarland, K.P. [et al.]. 2008.** Potential effects of climate change on birds of the Northeast. *Mitigation and Adaptation Strategies for Global Change*. 13: 517-540.
- Row, C. 1996.** Effects of selected forest management options on carbon storage. In: Sampson, R.N.; Hair, D., eds. *Forests and global change: Vol. 2. Forest management opportunities for mitigating carbon emissions*. Washington, DC: American Forests: 59-90.
- Ruefenacht, B.; Finco, M.V.; Nelson, M.D. [et al.]. 2008.** Conterminous U.S. and Alaska forest type mapping using Forest Inventory and Analysis data. *Photogrammetric Engineering and Remote Sensing*. 74(11): 1379-1388.
- Smith, W.B.; Miles, P.D.; Perry, C.H.; Pugh, S.A. 2009.** *Forest resources of the United States, 2007*. Gen. Tech. Rep. WO-78. Washington, DC: U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service. 336 p.
- Steelman, T.A. 2001.** Elite and participatory policy making: finding a balance in a case of national forest planning. *Policy Studies Journal*. 29(1): 71-89.
- Stewart, S.I.; Johnson, K.M. 2006.** Balancing leisure and work: evidence from the seasonal home. In: Peden, J.; Schuster, R., eds. *Proceedings, 2005 northeast recreation research conference*. Gen. Tech. Rep. NE-341. Newtown Square, PA: U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service, Northeastern Research Station: 144-150.
- Stokes, B.J.; Ashmore, C.; Rawlins, C.L.; Sirois, D.L. 1989.** Glossary of trees used in timber harvesting and forest engineering. Gen. Tech. Rep. SO-73. New Orleans: U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service, Southern Forest Experiment Station. 33 p.
- Stynes, D.J.; Zheng, J.J.; Stewart, S.I. 1997.** Seasonal homes and natural resources: patterns of use and impact in Michigan. Gen. Tech. Rep. NC-194. St. Paul, MN: U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service, North Central Forest Experiment Station. 39 p.
- Trani, M.K.; Brooks, R.T.; Schmidt, T.L.; Rudis, V.A.; Gabbard, C.M. 2001.** Patterns and trends of early successional forests in the Eastern United States. *Wildlife Society Bulletin*. 29(2): 413-424.
- Treiman, T.; Gartner, J.; Tuttle, J. 2008.** Emerald ash borer: How much will it hurt Missouri's pocketbook? *Notes for For. Managers* 15. Jefferson City, MO: Missouri Department of Conservation. 3 p.
- U.S. Census Bureau. 2000.** *Census of population and housing; census geography*. Washington, DC: U.S. Department of Commerce. www.census.gov. (10 February 2011).

- U.S. Census Bureau. 2007.** 2007 economic census. Washington, DC: U.S. Department of Commerce. www.census.gov. (10 January 2011).
- U.S. Census Bureau. 2009.** Annual survey of manufactures. Washington, DC: U.S. Department of Commerce. <http://www.census.gov/manufacturing/asm/index.html>. (10 January 2011).
- U.S. Census Bureau. 2010.** Population estimates. Washington, DC: U.S. Department of Commerce. <http://www.census.gov/popest/estimates.html>. (26 March 2011).
- U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service. 1958.** Timber resource for America's future. Forest Resource Rpt. No. 14. Washington, DC: U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service. 713 p.
- U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service. 2004.** National report on sustainable forests--2003. FS-766. Washington, DC: U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service. 139 p.
- U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service. 2005.** Pest alert: hemlock woolly adelgid. NA-PR-09-05. Newtown Square, PA: U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service, Northeastern Area State and Private Forestry. 2 p.
- U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service. 2009a.** Forest legacy program. Protecting private forest lands from conversion to non-forest uses. Washington, DC: U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service. <http://www.fs.fed.us/spf/coop/programs/loa/aboutflp.shtml>. (10 February 2011).
- U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service. 2009b.** National woodland owner survey. Washington, DC: U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service. <http://www.fia.fs.fed.us/nwos/>. (18 November 2010).
- U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service. 2009c.** Timber output mapmaker. Version 1.0. Washington, DC: U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service. <http://fia.fs.fed.us/tools-data/other/default.asp>. (18 September 2011).
- U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service. 2010a.** Forest Inventory and Analysis national program. Washington, DC: U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service. <http://fia.fs.fed.us/library/field-guides-methods-proc/>. (7 July 2011).
- U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service. 2010b.** Forest inventory data online (FIDO). Washington, DC: U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service. <http://fiatools.fs.fed.us/fido/index.html>. (10 February 2011).

- U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service. 2010c.** Forest legacy program: funded and completed projects. Washington, DC: U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service. http://www.fs.fed.us/spf/coop/programs/loa/flp_projects.shtml. (15 November 2010).
- U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service. 2010d.** Forest sustainability indicators information system. Washington, DC: U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service. <http://apps.fs.fed.us/fsiis/index.jsp>. (13 February 2012).
- U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service. 2010e.** Forest sustainability indicators information system: indicator 15 metrics. Forest ownership, land use, and specially designated areas. Washington, DC: U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service. <http://apps.fs.fed.us/fsiis/indicatorhome.do?IndicatorId=15>. (13 February 2012).
- U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service. 2010f.** Forest sustainability indicators information system: indicator 4 metrics. Status of forest/woodland communities and associated species of concern. Washington, DC: U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service. <http://apps.fs.fed.us/fsiis/indicatorhome.do?cId=6&menuId=2&IndicatorId=4>. (13 February 2012).
- U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service. 2011a.** Alien pest explorer: alien forest pest explorer maps. Washington, DC: U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service. http://www.fs.fed.us/foresthealth/technology/invasive_species.shtml. (28 January 2011).
- U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service. 2011b.** Forest health technology enterprise team: invasive species information. Washington, DC: U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service. <http://nrs.fs.fed.us/tools/afpe/maps/>. (28 January 2011).
- U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service. 2011c.** Forest health technology enterprise team: national insect and disease risk map/data. Washington, DC: U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service. <http://www.fs.fed.us/foresthealth/technology/nidrm.shtml>. (28 January 2011).
- U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service. 2011d.** Gypsy moth in North America: an atlas of historical gypsy moth defoliation and quarantined areas in the U.S. Washington, DC: U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service. <http://www.fs.fed.us/ne/morgantown/4557/gmoth/atlas/#spread>. (28 January 2011).
- U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service. 2011e.** National report on sustainable forests – 2010. FS-979. Washington, DC: U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service. 212 p. <http://www.fs.fed.us/research/sustain/2010SustainabilityReport/>. (11 June 2011).

- U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service. 2011f.** Northeastern Area State and Private Forestry Forest Health Protection aerial survey results viewer. Washington, DC: U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service. <http://www.na.fs.fed.us/ims/aerial/viewer.htm>. (28 January 2011).
- U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service. 2011g.** Soil quality: soil as an indicator of forest health. Washington, DC: U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service. <http://nrs.fs.fed.us/fia/topics/soils/>. (28 January 2011).
- U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service. 2011h.** Stewardship of the New York City watersheds. Washington, DC: U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service. http://www.na.fs.fed.us/ra/specialinitiatives/nycwatershed/2010/ny_city_watersheds.pdf. (14 February 2011).
- U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service. 2011i.** Timber product output (TPO) reports. Washington, DC: U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service. http://srsfia2.fs.fed.us/php/tpo_2009/tpo_rpa_int1.php. (14 January 2011).
- U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service; Northeastern Area Association of State Foresters. 2011.** 2010 Statewide forest resource assessments and strategies in the Northeast and Midwest: A regional summary. Newtown Square, PA: U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service, Northeastern Area State and Private Forestry. 51 p. <http://www.forestationplans.org/regions/northeastern-region> (12 August 2011).
- U.S. Department of Agriculture, National Agricultural Statistics Service. 2009.** Data and statistics. Washington, DC: U.S. Department of Agriculture, National Agricultural Statistics Service. http://www.nass.usda.gov/Data_and_Statistics/index.asp. (18 November 2010).
- U.S. Department of Agriculture, National Agricultural Statistics Service. 2010.** Crops and plant statistics. Washington, DC: U.S. Department of Agriculture, National Agricultural Statistics Service. <http://www.nass.usda.gov/>. (12 December 2010).
- U.S. Department of Agriculture, Natural Resources Conservation Service. 2006.** Land resource regions and major land resource areas of the United States, the Caribbean, and the Pacific basin. Agric. Handb. 296. Washington, DC: U.S. Department of Agriculture, Natural Resources Conservation Service. 669 p.
- U.S. Department of Agriculture, Natural Resources Conservation Service. 2011.** U.S. general soil map (STATSGO2). Washington, DC: U.S. Department of Agriculture, Natural Resources Conservation Service. <http://www.soils.usda.gov/survey/geography/statsgo/>. (2 February 2011).

U.S. Department of Agriculture, Natural Resources Conservation Service, Soil Survey Staff. 2010.

Keys to soil taxonomy. 11th ed. Washington, DC: U.S. Department of Agriculture, Natural Resources Conservation Service. 338 p.

U.S. Department of Energy. 2010. Carbon dioxide information analysis center. Oak Ridge, TN:

Oak Ridge National Laboratory. <http://cdiac.ornl.gov/>. (28 March 2011).

U.S. Department of Energy, Energy Information Administration. 2010. Renewable energy

consumption by energy use sector and energy source. Washington, DC: U.S. Department of Energy, Energy Information Administration. <http://www.eia.doe.gov/cneaf/solar.renewables/page/trends/table2.html>. (12 December 2010).

U.S. Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics. 2007a. Databases, tables and calculators

by subject. Washington, DC: U.S. Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics. <http://www.bls.gov/data/>. (28 August 2009).

U.S. Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics. 2007b. Injuries, illnesses, and fatalities.

Washington, DC: U.S. Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics. <http://www.bls.gov/iif/oshsum.htm#07Summary%20Tables>. (28 August 2009).

U.S. Department of State. 2000. United States submission on land-use, land-use change, and

forestry. Washington, DC: U.S. Department of State. 65 p. http://www.state.gov/www/global/global_issues/climate/000801_unfccc1_subm.pdf. (7 February 2011).

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency. 1996a. Environmental indicators of water quality in the

United States. EPA 841-R-96-2002. Washington, DC: U.S. Environmental Protection Agency.

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency. 1996b. Watershed progress: New York City watershed

agreement. EPA840-F-96-005. Washington, DC: U.S. Environmental Protection Agency. <http://www.epa.gov/owow/watershed/ny/nycityfi.html>. (10 February 2011).

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency. 2010. Surf your watershed. Washington, DC:

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency. <http://cfpub.epa.gov/surf/locate/index.cfm>. (8 July 2011).

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency. 2011. National watershed characterization-1999.

Washington, DC: U.S. Environmental Protection Agency. http://www.unl.edu/nac/atlas/Map_Html/Clean_Water/National/EPA_IWI-1999/National_water_quality.htm. (14 January 2011).

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Office of Wetlands, Oceans, and Watersheds. 2002.

Environmental indicators of water quality in the United States. Washington, DC: U.S. Environmental Protection Agency. <http://www.sarasota.wateratlas.usf.edu/upload/documents/EPA%20Indicators%202002.pdf>. (8 June 2010).

U.S. Geological Survey. 2010. Land cover institute. Washington, DC: U.S. Department of Interior, Geological Survey. <http://landcover.usgs.gov/>. (8 October 2010).

U.S. Geological Survey. 2011. Water resources of the United States: hydrologic unit maps.

Washington, DC: U.S. Department of Interior, Geological Survey. <http://water.usgs.gov/GIS/huc.html>. (11 January 2011).

Van Deusen, P.; L.S. Heath, L.S. 2009. COLE web applications suite. NCASI and USDA Forest Service, Northern Research Station. <http://www.ncasi2.org/COLE/> Research Triangle Park, NC: National Council for Air and Stream Improvement; and Newtown Square, PA: U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service, Northern Research Station. (28 March 2010).

Vogelmann, J.E.; Howard, S.M.; Yang, L. [et al.]. 2001. Completion of the 1990's national land cover data set for the conterminous United States. *Photogrammetric Engineering and Remote Sensing*. 67: 650-662.

West, T.O.; Post, W.M. 2002. Soil organic carbon sequestration rates by tillage and crop rotation: a global data analysis. *Soil Science Society of America Journal*. 66: 1930-1946.

Wickham, J.D.; Norton, D.J. 1994. Mapping and analyzing landscape patterns. *Landscape Ecology*. 9: 7-23.

World Commission on Environment and Development. 1987. Our common future. Oxford, UK: Oxford University Press. 400 p.



*Hiking trail in the
Cumberland Mountains*